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7. DESCRIPTION

CONDITION (Chock oney
Excellent [R Good [ Foir [J Deteriorated [} Ruins (] Unexposed [T]
1{Check One) (Check One)
INTEGRITY Altered (7] Unaltered K] Movad [} Original Site [J

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT ANO ORIGINAL (If known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Oatlands house is a large five-part Federal mansion with stuccoed brick walld.

The center section of the house is three stories in height covered by a low
hipped roof which is hidden by a parapet. The roof of the house was designed
to be topped by an octagonal cupola, but it is uncertain whether it was
ever built., The center section is fronted by a tetrastyle Roman Corinthian
portico which was added in 1827 according to George Carter's instructions.
Flanking the center section are two-bay two-story wings crowned by parapets.
Beyond each of these wings is an octagonal-ended two-story projection which
in each case contains a staircase. With the exception of the addition of a
one-story porch on the octagonal-ended drawing room, the house has changed
very little since the addition of the portico.

In addlqion to the , large entrance hall, the house contains five principal
rooms on:the first .floor with numerous bedrooms on the upper two floors. A
simplicify of_ layout is .revealed in ,the plan designed by George Carter and
retained by the Eustis family, the last private owners. The entrance door
has a definite Adamesque character both in the leaded tracery at the side
windows and the overdoor lunette, and in the entablature frieze below the
cornice. The cornice and frieze in the octagonal drawing room also reflect
the sophisticated taste of the Adam period, although the cornice moldings
and ceiling details of the other rooms are of a simple, solid character
reflecting the Greek Revival style.

The house is situated on a broad terrace which has a commanding view of the
surrounding farm lands and the Blue Ridge Mountains beyond. To the east

of the house are the extensive formal gardens laid out circa 1803 by George
Carter and.enlarged and restored by the Eustis family. The gardens are
particularly noted for their fine boxwood. The northwestern corner of the

gardens is bordered by the formally designed outbuildings and’ quarters. 'Neap

the southeastern corner of the gardens are the numerous farm buildings,
some of which date to the early-nineteenth century. -Surrounding the complex
of buildings and gardens is a large informal park and the farmlands beyond.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE (Include Personages, Dates, Events, Etc.)

Oatlands house was built between 1800 and 1803 by George Carter, son of
Robert "Councillor" Carter of Nomini 'Hall, and great-grandson of Robert
"King'" Carter of Corotoman. The land ¢n which the housé was built was
part of a 63,093 acre tract which Councillor'Carter had purchased in 1776
from the estate of Lord Fairfax, proprietor of the Northern Neck,
Councillor Carter gave 5,000 acres of this tract, which came to be known
as Oatlands, to George Carter as his coming-of-age gift in 1798.

The design of the house is credited to George Carter himself, who derived

his ideas from examples in William Chambers' A Treatise on Civil ArchitectuFe

published in London in 1768. Not only did Carter design the house and
supervise its construction, but he also laid out the extensive formal
gardens and planned the architecturally interesting slave quarters and
outbuildings.

Oatiands went into a gradual deciime in’the yeats £ollowing' the War'bétwden
. the States so that by 1897 the Carter family sold the estate to Stilson
"Hutéhins' 6f Washington, D. C., foundér of the Washington Pést. “In 1903~

the estate was acquired by William Corcoran Eustis, grandson of William

Wilson Corcoran, philanthropist and donor of the Corcééran Gallety of AFt,
and by his wife Edith, daughter of Levi Parsons Morton, Vice-President

of the United States under Benjamin Harrison. The house and part of

its farm were given in 1965 to the National Trust for Historic Preservation
which currently exhibits the house and sponsorsequestrian events on the

grounds.

As architecture, Oatlands house with its extensive gardens and numerous
outbuildings ranks as one of the most elaborate Federal country seats in
America. The complex is also valuable as a social document exhibiting
the elegance of Virginia country life in both the early-nineteenth and
early-twentieth centuries.,
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i10. GEDORAPHICAL DATA R i s
O T T e | QI s T
DEFINING A RECTANGLE LOCATING ‘TME PROPERTY :
Rl - . O LESSITHAN -ONE: konl R
CORNER LATITUDE LONGITUDE LATITUDE LONGITUDE
Degrees Minutes Seconds | Degrees Minutes Seconds Degrees Minutes Seconds | Degrees Minutes Seconds
NW | 39° 03" 03" | 77° 37" 16 ° ' * ° ot "
CNE 1397 037 037 | 73036’ 17 Clalgri
SE 139° 02" 15°{ 77° 36 17
¥ 139° 02" 15" 4§ 77° 37° 16

LIST ALL STATES AND COUNTIES FOR PROPERTIES OVERLAPPING STATE OR COUNTY BOUNDARIES

STATE: " CODE COUNTY u. CODE
STATE: CODE COUNTY‘; CODE
STATE: CODE COUNTY: CODE
STATE: CODE COUNTY: CODE

 FORM PREPARED BY

NAME AND TITLE:

Staff, Virginia Historic Landmarks Commissioh, James W, Moody, Jr., Director

ORGANIZATION DATE

Virginia Historic Landmarks Commissiom ...  _.-....::: .. ' J|August.2l, 1969
STREET AND NUMBER: '

Room 1116, Ninth Street State Office Building S R BN

CITY OR TOWN: STATE CODE
Rlchmond , Vigginia‘

TATE LIAISON OFFICER CERTIFICATION.

As the designated State Liaison Officer for the Na-
tional Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (Public Law
89-665), I hereby nominate this property for inclusion
in the National Register and ge}-tify that it has been
evaluated according to the c;lteria and procfd{r?s Bet.
forth by the National Park Service. The recommended
level of significance of this nomination is:

National [} State Local [

I hereby certify that this property is included in the
National Regiater.

Chief, Otfice of Archeology and Historic Preservation

Date

Name

ATTEST:

Dr. Edward P, Alexander, Chairmai
TitleVirginia Historic Landmarks Commigsion

Keeper of The National Register

Date Date

15,
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0. GEOGGRAPHICAL DATA

Plotting of the property boundaries extends from the leesburg
Quadrangle (Virginia-Loudoun Co., 7.5 minute series) to the
Lincoln Quadrangle (Virginia-loudoun Co., 7.5 minute series).

The following description Includes properties currently owned
by the National Trust for Historic Preservation, undar acquisi-
tion by the Mational Trust, pending easesmant to the National
Trust and presently under open space easement to the Virginia
Outdoors Foundation. :

Beginning at the Northeast corner of the district, the property
line extends WEST along State Rt. 651 crossing Rt. 15 to the
Northwest corner of the Mountain Gap School site; turning to the
WEST-SOUTHWEST the line extends spproximately 4300' to the
westernmost point where turning to the SCUTH, the line extends to
the southern edge of State Rt. 733; turning EAST, the line runs
along the south edge of State Rt. 733 to a point slightly west
of Rt. 15 whare it turns NORTH for a short distance and then
EAST crossing Rt. 15, omitting three houses at the junction of

" Rts. 733 and 15, it proceeds south along the east side of Rt. 15

to the junction of Rts. 15 and 650; where, turning vest;~ it re-
crosses Rt. 15, to the bank of Goose Cresk, opposite the Jjunction
of State Rts. 15 and 650; then extending EAST along the north
bank it passes under Rt. 15 to the Oatland Mills site; it turns
NORTH boundad on the east by State Rt. 650, to a point approxi-
mately 150 yards north of BM 317 where it turns due North return-
ing to the point of beginning on State Rt. 651 bounded by the
lands of Edgar Young Estate, Kathleen C. England and Melvin Bush;

“the whole containing 947 acres, more or less.
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U.S.G.5. 7.5" quadrangle (Scale:l:24000)

Leesburg, Va.-Md. (1952) M ! EI

Qatlands '

Latitude Longitude
N 39° o3' Qo3n 70 37 16m
NE 390 03' O3* 770 36t 1T
SE 39, 02! 15" 77° 368 A
SW 397 02¢ 150 77° 37 16m
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